
 

  
  

  
    

 

  
  
   

 

      
   

 

 
      

 
     

      
     
 

      
      

     
 

     
     

 
     

      
      
     
     
 
 

  

   
 

   

 
 

    
 

 
   
  
  
  

 
 

California State Board of Pharmacy Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 
2720 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100 Department of Consumer Affairs 
Sacramento, CA 95833 Gavin Newsom, Governor 
Phone: (916) 518-3100 Fax: (916) 574-8614 
www.pharmacy.ca.gov 

COMMUNICATION AND  PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE  
MEETING MINUTES  

Date: January 29, 2020 

Location: Embassy Suites by Hilton Los Angeles-Glendale 
800 N. Central Ave. 
Glendale, CA 91203 

Committee Members Ricardo Sanchez, Public Member, Chairperson 
Present: Debbie Veale, Licensee Member, Vice Chairperson 

Ryan Brooks, Public Member 

Committee Members Shirley Kim, Public Member 
Not Present: Valerie Muñoz, Public Member 

Staff Present: Anne Sodergren, Executive Officer 
Norine Marks, DCA Staff Counsel 
Jennifer Niklas, Senior Administrative and Policy Manager 
MaryJo Tobola, Senior Enforcement Manager 
Bob Dávila, Public Information Officer 

a. Call to Order and Establishment of Quorum 

Chairperson Sanchez called the meeting to order at 12:33 p.m. A quorum was established. 

b. Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda; Matters for Future Meetings 

None. 

c. Approval of the July 24, 2019, Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting 
Minutes 

M/S: Brooks/Veale 
• Support: Sanchez, Veale, Brooks. 
• Oppose: None. 
• Abstain: None. 
• Not present: Kim, Muñoz 

Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting Minutes – January 29, 2020 
Page 1 of 5 

www.pharmacy.ca.gov


     
   

 
 

    
 

   
     
     

    
 

     
     

     
     

 
  

    
  

 
  

 
   

 

     
 

  
  

   
    

 
   

    
 

   
   

 
 

        
  

      
  

 
   

   

d. Discussion and Review of Online Registry Being Developed for Pharmacies Providing 
Health Care Services 

Chairperson Sanchez noted the Board at its July 2019 meeting approved a committee 
recommendation to create a voluntary registry of pharmacy health services on the Board’s 
website. Consumers could search the registry to find pharmacies offering medications that 
may be furnished without a prescription pursuant to SB 493 and other legislation. 

Staff reported DCA was developing the registry for the Board. Staff also used a laptop 
computer to demonstrate the search function and provided a preview of the type of 
information to be made available to consumers, including pharmacy names, addresses, 
phone numbers, and services offered. Staff said the registry could be operating by spring. 

Member Veale suggested adding pharmacists who offer health services but do not work in 
pharmacies to the registry. Member Brooks recommended periodically checking with 
pharmacies in the registry to determine whether they are still offering the services. 

Public comment: None. 

e. Public Education Materials Regarding SB 159 (Wiener, Chapter 532, Statutes of 2019) 
Related to HIV Preexposure and Postexposure Prophylaxis 

Chairperson Sanchez noted the Board at its November 2019 directed the committee to 
develop public education materials regarding SB 159, which authorizes qualified 
pharmacists to initiate and furnish HIV preexposure and postexposure prophylaxis, 
commonly known respectively as HIV PrEP and PEP. He noted staff is monitoring the 
Licensing Committee’s work to develop a regulation to implement SB 159 and identify 
information that would be helpful to educate pharmacists about the law. 

Member Veale said it is important to encourage licensees to get involved in furnishing HIV 
PrEP and PEP. She noted that getting pharmacists to furnish naloxone, MAT, birth control 
and other services authorized by state law has been a challenge. Chairperson Sanchez said 
the Board could use a variety of tools to educate and encourage licensees to get involved, 
including the website, subscriber alerts, social media, and the Script. 

Ms. Sodergren suggested helping licensees understand how to put services authorized by 
law into practice – for example, how to seek reimbursement for providing services, how to 
manage required records, etc. Committee members said the Board could partner with 
experts such as schools, professional organizations, and stakeholders to develop fact sheets 
and informational videos explaining operational issues to licensees. 

Public comment: Danny Martinez of CPhA said the organization would actively encourage 
its members to get involved in furnishing PrEP and PEP. He said CPhA would work with the 

Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting Minutes – January 29, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 



     
   

 
 

  
     

   
     

 
 

   
 

       
 

   

   
    

   
     

 
     

    
 

   
    

  
 

   
     

 
    

     
 

    
  

     
   

   
   

 
   

   
 

  
  

    

Board on educating licensees about how to operationalize the service. He noted that unlike 
legislation authorizing pharmacists to furnish naloxone, SB 159 includes provisions 
authorizing Medi-Cal reimbursement for pharmacists furnishing PrEP and PEP. 
Member Veale said it is also important to provide information to licensees about 
documentation in furnishing services under SB 159 and other laws. 

A member of the public said a challenge to implementing SB 159 statewide is lower demand 
and availability of HIV medications in some rural areas than in urban areas. He suggested 
chain pharmacies could increase distribution of the drugs to their pharmacies in rural areas. 

f. Discussion and Consideration of Proposed Changes to Notice to Consumers Poster 

Chairperson Sanchez noted committee members at its July 2019 meeting asked staff to 
recommend  ways to refresh the Notice to Consumers poster. He said California Code of 
Regulations section 1707.6 requires pharmacies to post the notice prominently on site and 
specifies the wording to be printed on the notice. 

Staff suggested the committee might consider possible wording changes for the Notice to 
Consumers. Staff noted the poster does not reflect changes in prescription labeling 
requirements, which took effect in 2015. In addition, staff suggested the Board may want to 
provide information on how to verify a license and how to file a complaint with the Board, 
similar to the notice wording required by the Medical Board of California. Any changes to 
the Notice to Consumers would require rulemaking to amend CCR section 1707.6. 

Member Veale said issues that were critical when current wording was developed, such as 
information about interpretive services and drug pricing, may not be as important or 
relevant to consumers today. Member Brooks said it would be helpful to seek input from 
the public to find out what issues are important and should be included on the notice. Ms. 
Sodergren suggested DCA may have consumer groups that could be solicited for feedback. 

Members Veale and Brooks also questioned and discussed whether the Notice to 
Consumers should continue to be required. In addition, they asked what statutory and/or 
regulatory changes would be required to change the Notice to Consumers wording or to 
eliminate the requirement to have a Notice to Consumers. Ms. Marks said the notice 
requirement is addressed in BPC section 4122 as well as CCR section 1707.6. Chairperson 
Sanchez said he believed the notice is an important aid to consumers. 

The committee directed staff to seek feedback from consumers and report back on what 
kind of information might be more relevant for the Notice to Consumers. In addition, 
members directed staff to report back on what kind of statutory or regulatory changes 
would be required to make wording changes and to repeal the notice requirement. 
Public comment: Steve Gray suggested reaching out to organized consumer groups, such as 
the California Alliance of Retired Americans, for input on what information would be useful 

Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting Minutes – January 29, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 



     
   

 
 

     
  

 
    

   
   

 
 

 
  

  
   

    
  

   
   

 
   

  
  

   
    

 
    

 
   

    
  

 
   

   
       

 
   

     
 

   
 

  
  

    
 

to include on a Notice to Consumers poster. He also recommended seeking input from 
pharmacists about what consumers should or need to know. 

Mr. Gray also suggested the poster include information advising consumers of the right to 
ask that the purpose of their medication be included on the prescription label. He reminded 
the committee about BPC section 4076(e), which requires pharmacists to use professional 
judgment to provide patients with information enhancing the patient’s understanding of 
the medication’s directions for use. 

g. Educating Licensees about Possible Consequences of DUI Conviction 

Mr. Dávila noted at the July 2019 Board meeting, members suggested providing education 
to warn licensees about the possible professional consequences if they are convicted of 
driving under the influence (DUI). It was noted that licensees may not realize a DUI 
conviction could result in a citation and fine or disciplinary action, including license 
suspension or revocation. The Board asked the Communication and Public Education 
Committee to discuss the matter. 

Staff noted the Script currently includes summaries of all disciplinary cases, including DUI 
cases. In addition, staff suggested publishing articles in the Script as well as posting 
information on the website explaining the potential consequences of a DUI conviction for 
licensees. Staff also noted that each disciplinary case is unique, and the outcome of a 
specific case represents a totality of the facts of that case. 

Member Brooks suggested a Script article about the top five or 10 causes for license 
revocation, rather than focusing on DUI cases. Ms. Sodergren noted the agenda item is 
about educating licensees regarding possible consequences of a DUI conviction and said 
staff could put an item about educating licensees about the top five or 10 reasons for 
license revocation on a future committee meeting agenda. 

Public comment: Steve Gray said licensees also should be made aware of potential 
consequences if they are cited for driving under the influence of legal prescription drugs. He 
also said many licensees do not realize they can be cited for DUI in a boat or other vessel. 

Robert Stein of KGI School of Pharmacy said pharmacy law and ethics classes teach students 
that DUI and other behaviors outside the pharmacy can affect their pharmacy license. 

h. Update on Communication and Public Education Activities by Board Staff 

1. The Script 
Chairperson Sanchez reported articles for the next issue of the Script are undergoing 
legal review. The next issue will focus on new laws for 2020 and include articles include 
the top 10 citations, corresponding responsibility, and tips on reporting data to CURES. 

Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting Minutes – January 29, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 



     
   

 
 

  
  

      
     

    
    

  
 

    
    

 
  

   
    

 
      

  
  

 
  

     
 
  

   
 
  

    
   

 
   

  
 

 
  

2. Projects 
Chairperson Sanchez reported that billboards advertising the board’s “Use, Don’t 
Abuse” campaign to promote safe disposal of unused medications were erected in 
California in September. He said Outfront Media generously donated the locations, 
including two billboards in the Sacramento area, one in Fresno, and two additional 
locations planned in Southern California. He also thanked Member Brooks for working 
to provide the billboards. 

Staff reported that work is underway on a new pharmacy law update webinar for 2020. 
The webinar will be posted on the Board’s website. 

3. News Media 
Staff provided a list of news media organizations that contacted the Board’s executive 
officer and public information officer for interviews or background information. 

Public comment: Steve Gray asked if information provided to news media is available to 
the public. Ms. Sodergren advised filing a Public Records Act request as a practical 
process to ensure the requested information is provided. 

4. Public Outreach 
Staff provided a list of recent outreach activities by Board inspectors and staff. 

i. News or Journal Articles 

There were no articles to report. 

j. Future Meeting Dates 

Chairperson Sanchez reported future 2020 meeting dates for the Communication and Public 
Education Committee: May 6, July 8, and October 27. 

Member Brooks requested that Board members receive Google calendar alerts of upcoming 
meetings to help members streamline planning and avoid schedule conflicts. 

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 1:39 p.m. 

Communication and Public Education Committee Meeting Minutes – January 29, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 


	COMMUNICATION AND PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE
	MEETING MINUTES




Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		20_jan_pub_ed_min.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 0



		Passed: 30



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top

